Early Vancouver

Volume One

By: Major J.S. Matthews, V.D.

2011 Edition (Originally Published 1932)

Narrative of Pioneers of Vancouver, BC Collected During 1931-1932.

A Collection of Historical Data, Maps, and Plans Made with the Assistance of Pioneers of Vancouver Between March and December 1931.

About the 2011 Edition

The 2011 edition is a transcription of the original work collected and published by Major Matthews. Handwritten marginalia and corrections Matthews made to his text over the years have been incorporated and some typographical errors have been corrected, but no other editorial work has been undertaken. The edition and its online presentation was produced by the City of Vancouver Archives to celebrate the 125th anniversary of the City's founding. The project was made possible by funding from the Vancouver Historical Society.

Copyright Statement

© 2011 City of Vancouver. Any or all of *Early Vancouver* may be used without restriction as to the nature or purpose of the use, even if that use is for commercial purposes. You may copy, distribute, adapt and transmit the work. It is required that a link or attribution be made to the City of Vancouver.

Reproductions

High resolution versions of any graphic items in *Early Vancouver* are available. A fee may apply.

Citing Information

When referencing the 2011 edition of *Early Vancouver*, please cite the page number that appears at the bottom of the page in the PDF version only, not the page number indicated by your PDF reader. Here are samples of how to cite this source:

Footnote or Endnote Reference:

Major James Skitt Matthews, Early Vancouver, Vol. 1 (Vancouver: City of Vancouver, 2011), 33.

Bibliographic Entry:

Matthews, Major James Skitt. Early Vancouver, Vol. 1. Vancouver: City of Vancouver, 2011.

Contact Information

City of Vancouver Archives 1150 Chestnut Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6J 3J9 604.736.8561 archives@vancouver.ca vancouver.ca/archives



W.L. McDonald: For Hastings St. grubbing, etc. 24¢ per lineal foot, 6 foot sidewalk. 62¢ per lineal foot grubbing.

Boyd and Clendenning: For Keefer St. 28¢ per lineal foot, 6 foot sidewalk. 59¢ per lineal foot grubbing.

(Note: by "6 foot sidewalk" is intended plank sidewalk, not concrete.)

CAMBIE STREET, GEORGIA STREET, SEVENTH AVENUE, WESTMINSTER AVENUE, PARK AVENUE, ETC. JOHNSTONE STREET.

Extract, Daily News-Advertiser, 19 July 1887.

Minutes of City Council.

Board of Works recommends that:

- 1. Park Ave. and Johnstone St. with one five foot sidewalk.
- 2. Cambie Street. To be grubbed, cleared, and graded with two six-foot sidewalks from Hastings Street to Georgia Street, and from there to the railroad reserve to be cleared, and close cut the full width, and eighteen feet in the centre grubbed, cleared, graded, ditched and crowned.
- 3. Georgia Street. To be close cut, cleared and burned from Howe St. to the junction, and twenty feet in the centre grubbed, cleared, graded, ditched and crowned.

There follows a long list of recommendations, including Westminster Avenue across False Creek Bridge, and also Campbell Avenue, too long for inclusion here.

"Park Avenue" may refer to Park Lane or Park Road. The latter is the boundary between Stanley Park and the city; the former was a short street of one block, which at one time ran parallel to Westminster Avenue from Prior Street southwards. Johnstone Street is unknown, but may be a short street running east and west, which joined it to Westminster Avenue. It was the site of the home of John Boultbee, our first magistrate, whose brother-in-law, C. Gardner Johnson, lived nearby. Park Lane is now part of the Canadian National Railway station ornamental gardens.

SEVENTH AVENUE (NOT EAST OR WEST, BUT SEVENTH AVENUE), SAME DATE.

"7th Ave. To be cleared to full width and graded, ditched, crowned 18 feet in the centre." (Understood to be the first through street to be opened up from east to west in Fairview.)

9 July 1931 - Kitsilano. Fourth Avenue West. Tatlow Park.

"The photo of our old place, four acres, on the south side of Fourth Avenue and between Bayswater and Balaclava streets," said Mrs. J.Z. Hall of "Killarney." It ran back as far as Sixth Avenue West; a great square cut out of the bush.

"It was cleared out of the forest, a square hole in virgin timber, and through which ran a large creek. We camped there each summer for four years, from about 1906 onwards; afterwards, we went to live on the shore, exactly opposite the present 'Killarney.' The creek was full of trout, and was the large creek which ran across Fourth Avenue West between Balaclava and Bayswater in a deep ravine, and came out at what is now T.H. Orchardson's residence, 3005 Point Grey Road; a ravine which has now been filled in. This creek was not the same creek as the *little* one which still runs through Tatlow Park, just west of Macdonald Street. The big creek was forty feet wide where it passed through the Hall clearing; we dammed it with logs, bathed in the pool made by them, and fished in it. The Tatlow Park creek ran off in a southerly direction, the big creek went southwesterly, and must have drained a great area. It is dried up now.